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CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

P
We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
(*the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of
Cash Fiows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the
“Financial Statements™),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS™} and other accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, the loss and other comprehensive
income, its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our andit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (“SAs™). Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further deseribed in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAT”) together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the Financial Statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s Directors’
report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thercon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs (financial positicn), profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive
income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;

In preparing the Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Dlrectors are also
responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Financial Statements as a whole,
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a gharantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintaic
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

» [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Financial Statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, Under section143(3)(1) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.,

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Financial Statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give
in the “Annexure A’, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so

far as it appears from our examination of those books.

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in tenms of Section 164 (2} of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

() In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the Company has not paid / provided any remuneration to its directors during the year ended
March 31, 2022.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.
i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for

which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii) There were no amounts which were required to be fransferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv) a)} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
person or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause () and (b) contain any material misstatement.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

v) The Company has not declared/paid any dividend during the year and subsequent to
the year-end.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

ahyd’ Mukhi

Partner

Membership No.099719
New Delhi, May 28, 2022
UDIN: 22099719AMNSGI1045
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiaballs Investment Advisors Lintited for the year ended March 31, 2022

With reference to the Annexure A referred to in the Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of
the Company on the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report the following:

(D (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its
property, plant and equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased
manner. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment were verified during
the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size
of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not have any immovable properties. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is
not applicable,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment or
intangible assets or both during the year,

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, there-are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for -
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and

rules made thereunder,

(i) (a) The Company’s inventories comprising of properties held for resale have been physically
verified during the year by the management of the Company. In our opinion, the frequency of such
verification is reasonable, and procedures and coverage as follc}‘;{qsd by management were appropriate.
No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of
five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current
assets at any point of time during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(iif) The Company has not made investments in and provided any guarantee or security to companies,
firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. However, the Company has granted secured
and unsecured loans to companies, firns, Limited Liability Partnerships and to other parties during the
year in respect of which:

(this space has intentionally been left blank)
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-Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

(iif) (a) During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:

Loans (Amount
in Rs. lakhs)
Aggregate amount granted /provided during the year
- Others 13,547.50
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases
- Others 12,219.50

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any investments in or provided security to or
provided guarantees to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties during the
year., According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, in our opinion the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature
of loans during the year are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans during the year to companies where the
schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the repayment or
receipts are regular,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted
to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not extended / granted fresh loans during the year to the
respective parties to settle the dues of the existing loans,

() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or peried of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) In our opinion and according to information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of loans
and investments, to the extent applicable to it. The Company has not entered into any transactions in
respect of security and guarantees covered under section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from the
public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services provided by
it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and
Value added tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, these statutory dues have been subsumed
into Goods and Services Tax (“GST™).

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / accrued in the books of account in respect
of undisputed statutory dues including GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax,
Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited by the
Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of GST, Provident fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31
March 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to GST, Provident Fund, Employees
State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Duty of Customs, Value Added Tax or Cess or
other statutory dues which have not been deposited on account of any dispute.

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not swirendered or disclosed any transactions, previously
unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961
as income during the year.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defauited in the repayment of loans or borrowings
or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared wilful defanlter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not taken any term loan during the year. In respect of the
outstanding term loans at the beginning of the year, such loans were applied for the purpose for which
the loans were obtained.

(d) The Company has not raised any funds on short-term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting
on clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(&) The Company does not have any subsidiaries. Accordingly, reporting on clause 3(ix}(e) of the Order
is not applicable.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 (confinued)

(%) (a) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clanse 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement
of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the
Order is not applicable.

(xi) (@) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on
Auditing, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Act has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Governient.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) are not
applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business,

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the Company during
the year.

(xv) In our opinion, during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its Directors or persons connected with its directors. and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company is not
required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(xvi)(a) and clause 3 (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC}) as defined in the regulations made by the
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi){c) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the
Company, the Group {as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016)
does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

{xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable,

{(xix) According to the informaticn and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting
its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) In our apinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly, clauses
3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Mukhi
Partner
Membership No.099719
ew Delhi, May 28, 2022
: 22099719AMNSGI1045
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Indiabulls Investment
Advisors Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal centrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI").
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's intemnal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate intemal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting with reference to these Financial Statements and their
operating effectiveness. Qur audit of intemnal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these
Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
to these Financial Statements.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Financial Statements of
Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited for the year ended March 31, 2022 (continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatemnents due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements and such internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the
internal contro] over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 016827N

\a} ol Mukhi

Partner

UDIN: 22099719AMNSGI 1045
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Indiabulls Tnvestment Advisors Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022
(Al amonnts w1 Rs Lakhs unless stated othentise)

Assels
Non-current asscts
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asseis
Right-of-Use Asscis
Financial assets

Loans

Trade receivables

Other firancial assels
Deferred tax asscis(net)
Other non-current asscts
Total nen-current assets

Current assets
Inventorics
Financial assets
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalenis
Loans
Other financial assets
Current lax assets {net)
Other current assets
Total current assets

Total asscts

Equity and liabilities
Equity

Equity share capital
Other equity

Total cquity

Liabilities
Non-current linbilitles
Financial liabilities
Bormvowings
Lease Liabilities
Provisions
Totul non-current liabilities

Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics

Lease Liabilitics

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Provisions
Total current liahilitics

Total equity and liabilitics

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these {inancial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date

For Ajay Surdana Associntes

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

;4...-\0\:&..—“ cAo-al
Amiteshavar Chowdhary

Whole time Director

DIN: 01679090
Wew Delhi: 28 May 2022

Note

(i)
4(b}
A{c)

L =3E-C R U - )

1
12
13
14

15

17

20

For and on behalf of the Board of Dircetors

Usha Devi
Director
DIN: 03493022

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

3323 46.12
40.12 48.20

- 7.58
1.67354 1,563 95
493 65 1.814.55
573.23 6,234.76

1.353.29 1.61501
3.825 14 12,322 66
7.992.20 23,652.83

120.23 -

1,402.61 2.039.30
21020 68.09
12.332.66 88220
1,112.84 35768
110.48 31704
194.62 178 12
15,483.64 3.442.43
23,475.84 27.495.26
35.55000 35.55000
{12.517.66) 18,354 78)
23,032.34 27.195.22
- P04

- 0.72

104 86 106 52
104.86 108.28

- 807

1.04 149
33487 175.66
273 354
338.64 191.76
2347584 27,495,26

Rujeev LoWhien Akrawal
Chief Financig! Officer

L

Rawm dehar Garg
Company Secrelary




Indizbulls Investinent Advisers Limited
Statement of profit and loss for thie year ended 31 March 2022
(AN amowns in Rs Lakhs unless stated othenvise)

1!
]
Y

Vi

VIi

vl

X1

X

For the year ended

For the year ended

Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Revenue from operaltons 24 8l1.6]1 956 73
Net gain on de-recognition of financial assets at amortized cost 1615 2308
Other income 5 T14.95 298.04
Tatal revenue [T+HIT+IIT) 1.542.71 1,277.85
Expenses
Employee benefits expenses 26 513.14 544 69
Finance costs 27 0.80 14 09
Depreciation and amortisation expense 2097 6332
Impairment losscs et 4.728.24 30026
Other expenses a9 179.25 383.55
Total expenses (V) 5.442.40 1,306.11
Laoss hefore exceptional iteins and tax (IV-V) (3,89%.69) (28.26)
Exceptinnal ftems - -
Loss before tax (VI-VII) {3,399.69) (28.26)
Tax expense 30

Current tax - -

Earlier year tax cxpenses 021 -

Deferred tax 266.53 366.20

Total tax expenses 266.74 366.20
Loss for the year (VIII-IX) (416643} (394.46)
QOther comprehiensive income
[tems that will not be reclassified 1o profit or loss

(A)-Re-measurement gain/(loss) on delined benefit plans [19.12) 57.51

(B¥Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified 1o profit and loss 481 (14.48)

Total other contprehensive (lass)income (A+13) (14.31) 43.03
Total comprehensive luss for the year (X+XI) (4.180.74) {351.43)
Earnings per equity share (Rs, 10 per share) 3

{1} Basic (Rs) {117 (00D

{2} Diluted (Rs} (.17 (0.1
Face value per equity share 10.00 10.00

The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statemients.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our repon of even date

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

Amiteshwar Choudhary Ushit Devi

Whole time Director Director
DIN: 01679090 DIN: 03498022
New Delhi: 28 May 2022

For Ajay Sardana Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Tahul Mulhi
Partner

Ram Mchar Garg
Company Secretary




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flaws for the yeor ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs unless stated otheryise)

A Cash flow from gperafing aclivities :
Net profitf{loss) betore tax
Adjustments for

Interest Income from Inter Corporate Deposits
Unwinding of interest incotme

Net gain on derecognition of leases

Net gain on de-recognition of financial asscts at amortized cost
Interest on Fixed Deposits
Excess provistons writicn back

Net loss on modification of financial assets
Efteet of reversal of financing component from revenue
Loss on sale/ scrapping of fixed assets
Finance costs
Depreciation and Amortisation
Provision for Gratuity and Compensated Absences
Share-based payment expense
Provisian for impairment loss due 1o expected credit loss
Bad debt written off

Operating profit{loss) before changes in working capital
Adjustments for:
Loans
Inventorics
Trade receivables and other financial assets
QOther non-current assels
QOther current assets
QOther financial liabilities
Provisions
Other curreat liabilities
Cash (used in)/ generated from operations

Direct taxes (paid)/refund (net)
Net eash (used in)/ generated from operating activities

B Cash flow from investing activities :
Purchase of Property, plant and equipment and intangible asscts
Sale of fixed assets
Interest Recerved
Net eash (used in)/ generated from investing activities

C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from/Repayment of) Sccured Loans (Including Current Maturity of Long
Term Deb) (MNet)
Payment of Lease liabilitics (including interest on lease liabilitics)
Interest paid
Net cash generated fromf{used in) finiancing activities

D Netincrease/{decreasc) in cash and cash cquivilents ( A+B+C)
E  Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year (refer note ii. below)

I Cash and eish eguivalents at (he close of the year (D+ E)

Year cuded
31 March 2022

Year ended
31 March 2021

(3,899.69) {28.26)
(441.39) (25.75)
(224.22) (95.14)

(117 (21.32)
(16.15) (23.08)
(11.52) (16.01)
(2257 (132.76)

426 22690

. 38.90
1.54 78.45

0.80 208

20.97 63.52

13.87 18.91

17.86 549

4,728.24 300.00
- 0.26
170.83 398.19
(11,323.94) 12233
{120.23) -
2,134.71 24 88
8.49752 057
{16.50} 16.69
- (11.00)

(34 69y (49.97)

181.01 {383.45)
(51129) 11824

206.35 (24.93)
(304.94) 93.31

(0.98) (1.51)
0.01 16.57
453 92 4327
452.95 58.33

(4.49)

(4.12)

{(0.68) (17.11)

0.73) (3.92)

(5.90) (25.15)
142.11 126.49

68.09 (58.40)
210.20 68.09




indizbulls Investment Advisors Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued):
(Al ameunts in Rs. Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Notes:

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indirect Method” as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) - 7 on "Statement
of Cash Flows " as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Cash and cash equivalents includes:

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Cash and cash cquivalents (Refer Note-12) 21020 68.09
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year 210,20 68.09

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statemenis.
This is the Statement of Cash Flows refemed to in our report of cven date

For Ajay Sardana Associules For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regustration Ne. 016827N

Rahul Muk’ ! A lgglﬁ-ﬂ

Ammiteshwar Cheudhary Rajeev IycharjAgrawal  Ram Mcehar Garg
Partner Whole time Directlor Director Chief Financial Offiecr Company Secrelary
Membership No. 099719 DIN. 01679050 DN 03498022
New Delhi: 28 May 2022 New Delhi: 28 May 2022




Indinbulls ITnvestment Advisors Limited

Statement of Changes in Equily for the period ended 31 March 2022

¢4l amomnis m Rs Lakls unless stoted othern iae)

A, Equity Share Capital

(i) Current repnrting vear

Ralance as at 1 April 2021

Changes in Equity Share
Capital due to privr period

Restated balunce as a2t
I April 2021

Chunges in ¢quity shure
capital during the current
vear

Balance us at 31 March

2022

35.350.00

Ierrnrs

35,550 00

35.550.00

(ii) Previous reporting vear

Balunce as at 1 April 2024

Changes in Equity Share
Capitul due to prior peried
errors

Restated balance as at
1 April 2020

Changes in equity share
capital during the current
year

Balance as at 3F March

2021

35,550.00 - 35.550.00 - 35.550.00
B. Othicr Equity
(i) Current reporiing year

Reserves and surplus
Particulars Share uptions outstanding | Other camponent of Retai . Total
. clained earnings
account cuity
Balance as ar | Apdl 2021 11.34 4.7 (8,371.03) (3,354.78)
Changes in accounting pohcy/pnar penod errors - - - -
Restated halastee at the beginning of the current
reporting yveur 11.34 4.91 (8.371.03) (8,354.78)
Total Otlier Comprehensive loss for the curment year - - {1431} (14.31)
Dividends - - - -
Loss for e year - - {4,166 43) (4,106.43)
Transfermed from share options autstanding account - - 0.39 0.39
Transferred to relzined eamings {0.39) - - {0.39)
Employee share-based paviment (credit) 17.86 - - 17 86
Balance as at 31 March 2022 28.81 4.91 (12.551.38} (12,517.66)
{ii) I'revious Reporting Period
Reserves and surplus
Particulars Share opfions eutstanding | Other component of . . Total
Retained enrnings
ncecomnt cquity
Balance as at 1 April 2020 6.41 4.9] (8,020.16) {8,008.84)
Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors - - - -
Restated halance at the brginning of the previous
reporting vear 6.41 4.9 (8,020.16) (8.005.84)
Total Other Comprehiensive Income for the previous year
- - 4303 43.03

Dividends - - - -
Loss for the year - . (3%4.46) {394.46)
Transferred from share options outstanding accaunt - - 0.56 0.56
Transferred to retained eamings {0.56) . - {0.56)
Employee sharc-based payment (credit} 549 . - 549
Balunee ns at 31 March 2021 1134 4.91 (#,371.03) (8.354.78)

The uccompanying notes are nn integrt part of these financial siatements.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity refested in our report of even date.

For Ajay Sardana Assaociates
Churtered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 016827N

Far and on behndlof chie Board of Dircctors

el pm o

Raliul Mukhi

Pariner

Membership No. 0997
New Delhi: 28 hay 2022

Whole time Directar
DIN: 01679090
New Dethi: 28 May 2022

edosng (&@
Amiteshwur Choudhary Usha Devi Rajecy

Director
DIN. 03495022

T Agrawal

Chief Findyeial Pliicer

/

Ram Mchar Garg
Company Secretary




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
{All amounts i Rs.Lakhs unless stated othenvise)

Note-1

Company Overview:

Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited (formerly known as Indiabulls Brokerage Limited) (“the Company™) was incorporated on August
22, 2008. On January 15, 2009 the Company received a certificate of registration from the Securities and Exchange Board of India
{"SEBI") under sub —section 1 of section 12 of the Seccurities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 to carry on its business as stock and
share brokers. Accordingly, all provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, and rules and regulations relating
thereto are applicable to ITAL. During the year ended March 31, 2013, the Company surrendered its wrading membership in all segments
with tire National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and in cash segment with the BSE Ltd. (BSE). On September 17, 2013, SEBI,
vide its letter to the NSE and BSE, confirmed the cancellation of the Company's registration certificate with effect from March 28, 2013.
On March 28, 2013, NSE issued a notification approving the Company’s request for surrender of membership in all segments.

In accordance with the provisions of section 13 and other applicable provisions of the Companics Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Incorporation) Rules, 2014, the members of the company at their Extraordinary General Meeting held on April 29, 2017, accorded their
approval to change the name of the Company. The Company has since received fresh certificale of incorporation consequent upon change
of name from the Registrar of Companies, National Capital Temitory of Delhi & Haryana dated May 12, 2017, in respect of the said
change. Accordingly, the name of the Company was changed from Indiabulls Brokerage Limited to Indiabulls Investment Advisors
Limited.

In accardance with the approval of the members of the Company, vide special resolution passed at their Extraordinary general meeting held
on April 29, 2017 and of the Registrar of Companics, National Capital Territory of Delhi & Faryana, and pursuant to the provisions of
Section 13 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companics Act, 2013, rcad with applicable rules made thercunder, new set of
Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the Company in accordance with Table A of Schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013, inter alia
modifying sub clause 5 of the erstwhile main object of the MOA, as reproduced below, was adopted as follows:

1} To act as investment advisors andfor distributor for all third party product in financial service sector including insurance products such
as life, pension, fire, motor & other products and to carry on the business of insurance either dircetly or as an insurance agent, insurance
broker or othenwise.

2) To engage in the business of insurance intermediation and acting as corporate agent, direct insurance brokers, composite insurance
brokers for life, general & health, re-insurance brokers, insurance consultant, assessors, valuers and surveyors, for the purpose of soliciting
or procuring life or genera! or health insurance business for clients and insurance companies

3) To carry on the business of providing business process outsourcing and all other services to insurers and insurance intermediarics
including but not limited to data entry, pracurement, compilation, analysis and processing, report generation, discrepancy marking. quality
check of proposal forms, processing of claims and claims support activities, providing of infrastructure and communication support

4) To acquire, hold / scll propertics, buildings, farms, lands lenements and such other moveable and immovable propertics and to rent, let
on hire and manage them and 1o act as consultants, financial advisors and to give expert advice and advice on acquisition and commercial
exploitalion of real estate and suggest ways and means for improving cfficiency in real estate development and to act as real estate agent
and immovable propertly dealers.

3) To carry on in India or elsewhere the business to undertake, develop, build, design, organize, promote, finance, operate, maintain or
manage Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone(s) (SEZ), including Multt product and Multiservice Industrial Parks, SEZ, Software
Parks, IT Parks and to act as develapers, co-developer of Industrial Parks, Speciat Economic Zone(s) and any other industrial, commercial
or social infrastructure or other facilitics necessary lor the development of Industrial Parks, Special Economic Zone(s), Software Parks, IT
Parks including development, construction, run repair, maintain, decorate, improve, remodel, build, operate and manage roads, bridges,
highways, gaslines, gardens, public places, buildings, and other structures, developments, utilities ¢tc. and to do all ollter related acts, deeds
and things as may be necessary from time to time.

During the year ended March 31, 2018, in accordance with the applicable provisions of the relevant Real Estate Regulation Act in various
states in india, the Company was registered as a real estate agent and has commenced such activities subsequent to obtaining the aforesaid
registrations.




Indinbutls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year cnded 31 Marcl, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs unfess stated otherwise)

Note -2
2.1 General information and statement of compliance with Ind AS

These financial staternents (‘financial statemcents™) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015
(by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA™)). The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies during the periods presented.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 were authorized and approved for issue by the Board of Dircctors on May 28,
2022.

2.2 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in Indian Rupee which is the functional currency of the Company. These financial
slalements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value or
amortized cost at the cnd of each reporting period, ns explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is gencrally based on the
fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The statement of cash flows have been prepared under indirect method.

2.3 - Current versus Non Current Classifications

The Company presents asscts and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset as current when it is

(i)- Expected to be realized or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

(ii)- Held primarily for the purposc of trading

(iii). Expecled to be realized within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

(iv). Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to scitle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classilied as non-current.

A liability is current when :

(i). It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

(ii}. I is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(tii}. It is due to be setled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(iv). There is no unconditional right to defer the setilement of liability for at least twelve months afler the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilitics.

The operating eyele is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash cquivalents, The
Company has identified twelve months as ils operating cycle.

Note-3
Significant Acconnting Palicies:

a) Use of estimates and judgements:
In preparing these Ind AS financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of asscts, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are revicwed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates arc
recognized prospectively.

Estimation of uncertaintics relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19 (COVID-19):

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on its business operations
and financial position, based on its review of current indicators of future economic conditions. The impact assessment of COVID-19
is @ continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements. The Company will contintie to monitor any material
changes to future cconomic conditions.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(Al anrounts in Rs.Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

Note - 3 (confinued):

b)

)

Revenue Recognition:
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of services (“performance obligalions*™) to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration the Company has reccived or expects to receive in exchange for these services (“lransaction price™. When there is

unceriainty as to collectability, revente recognition is postponed until such uncertainty is resolved.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, rebates, scheme
allowances, price concessions, incentives, and returns, if any, as specified in the contracts with the customers. Revenue excludes
taxcs collected from customers on behalf of the government. Accruals for discounts/incentives and returns are estimated (using the

most likely method) based on accumulated experience and underlying schemes and agreements with customers.

The Company has adopted Ind AS — 115 Revenue from contracts witlh customers, with effect from 1st April, 2018. Ind AS - 115
cstablishes principles for reporting information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenues and ¢ash flows arising

from the contracts with its customers and replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS {1 Construction Contracts

The Company has adopted Ind AS - I15 using the cumulative effect method whereby the effect of applying this standard is
recognized at the date of initial application {i.c. Ist April, 2018). Accordingly, the comparative information in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss is not restated. Impact on adoption of Ind AS - 115 is not materfal.

« Income from Brokerage and commission is recognized on accrual basis, generally as set out under the terms of contracts/agreements
with respective customers.

+ Income from fee based consultancy is recognized on an acerual basis in terms of the contracts/agrecments with respeclive
customers.

= Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method as sct out in Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement, when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the
amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a
financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of alloeating the interest income or
interest expense over Lhie relevant period.

Taxes on Income:

Current tax

Current Tax is determined at the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable profit for the year as per the Income-tax Act, 1961.
Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as reported in the financial statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Entity’s current tax is
calculated using tax rate that has been enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred fax

Deferred tax is recognized on temperary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary dilferences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differcnees to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profils will be available against which those deduclible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and Habilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of asscts and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the aceounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asscts is reviewed at the end of cach reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or pant of the asset Lo be recovered.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the fax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover ar sellle the carrying amount of its asscts and liabilities. Deferred tax
liabilities and asscis are measured at the tax rates that are expeeted to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the assct
realized, based on tax rates (and 1ax laws) that have been cnacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate lo items that are recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
directly in equity respectively.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Laklis unless stated otherwise)

d)

¢

)

h)

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost comprises the purchase price and any direcily attributable cost
to bring the asset to its working condition for its intended usc. An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part
initially recognized is derccognized upon disposal or when no future cconomic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal procecds and the carrying
amount of 1he assel) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation on Property, plint and equipment is provided on straight-line method as per the usefu! life prescribed in Schedule 11 to
the Companies Act, 2013. Assets cosling less than Rs. 5,000 each are fully depreciated in the year of capitalization.

Intangiblc assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulaled amortization and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated
useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounled for on a prospective basis.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and the amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial year and the
amortization period is revised to reflect the changed patiern, if any.

An imangible assel is derccognized on disposal, or when no future econromic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or
losscs arising from derccognition of an intangible assel, measured al the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Impairment of asscts

The Company assesses at ¢ach Balance Sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimales the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s net
selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to
which the asset belongs is less than ils carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. I at the Balance Sheet date there is an indication
that if a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount.

Borrowing Costs:
Borrowing costs thal are atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assels are capitalized as part of cosl
of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged 10 revenue.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assels:

Provisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation as a result of past events and wlien a reliable cstimate of the amount
of obligation can be made. Contingent liability is disclosed for {1) Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events
not wholly within the control of the Company or {2) Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made,
Contingent Assets arc not recognized in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may never be
realized.

Financial instruments }
A financial instroment is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and a financial liability or equily insteument of
another.

Note 3 (continued):

1

Financial asscts

Initial recognition and measurcment

All financial assels are recognized initially at fatr value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are atiributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset.

Subsequent mensurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost
A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(AN amounts in Rs.Lakhs unless stated athervise)

(@) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPL")
on the principal amount outstanding,

Afler initial measurement, such {inancial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (‘EIR”)
method. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial instruments {continucd}

Debt instrument at FYTOCI (Fair Value through OCI)
A “debt instrument” is classified as at the FVTOC! i both of the following criteria are met:

{a) The objective of the business madel is achicved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and
{b) The assct’s contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debl instruments included within the FVTOCT category are measttred initially as well as a1 each reporting date at fair value.

Fair value movements are recognized in the OCI. However, the Company recognizes interest income, impaimment losses & reversals
and foreign exchange pain or loss in the profit and Joss. On derecognition of the assct, cumulative pain or loss previously recognized
in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit and loss. Interest eamed whilst holding FVTOCI debi instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR methad.

Debt instrument at FYTPL (Fair value through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise mects amortized cost or FVTOCI eriteria, as at
EVTPL. However, such cleclion is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as *accounting mismatch’). Debt instruments included within the FYTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in entities other than tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which
are held for trading arc classificd as at FVTPL. For all other equily instruments, the Company decides to classify the same either as at
FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such clection on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial
recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from QCI to P&L., even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instrumtents included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss.
Investments in tax free bonds and fixed deposits are measured at amortized cost




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs unless siated otherwise)

Note 3 (continuexl):

i)

IL.

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a lnancial asset or part of & Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognized (i.c. removed from the Company’s balanee sheet) when:

* The rights 1o reccive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

« The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or {b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Tmpairment of financial asscis

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure;

a) Financial assets that are debl instrumcnts, and are measured at amontized cost ¢.g., loans. debt securitics, deposits, trade reccivables
and bank balance.

b) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18.

For recognition of impairment Joss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

I, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilitics

Initial recognition and measurcment

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings,
payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are
recognized initially at fair valuc and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The
Company’s financial lisbilities include trade and other payables.

Subscquent measurcment
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial Jiabilitics at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and
losses are in profit or loss when the liabilitics are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into gecount any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegeal part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or [oss. This ecategory generally applies to trade payables and other
contractual liabilities.

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial linbilities at fir value through prefit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for wading if they are incumed
for the puepose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes detivative financial instruments cntered into by the
Company that are not designated as hedging instrumients in hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilitics designated upon initial recognition at fair valuc through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of
recognition, and only il the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc salisficd. For liabilitics designated as FVTPL, fair valuc gains/losses
attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gainsflosses are not subsequently transferred to profit and
loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within cquity. All other changes in fair value of such liability
are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit
and loss.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

P

Dereccognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expircs. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by anotler from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting finaneial instruments
Financtal assets and liabilitics are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
1o offsct the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and seltle the Hability

simultancously..

The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey of the Company or the counterparty.

Note 3 (continued):

k)

Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a [ease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to
control the usc of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a [essce

‘The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets. The Company recognizes Icase liabilitics to make lease payments and right-of-use assels representing the right to use the
underlying assets.

(i) Right-of-use Assets (ROU Assels)

The Company recognizes right-ol-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset is available for
usc). Right-of-use assels are measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeaserement of lease [inbilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilitics recognized, initial direct
costs incurred, and [ease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives recgived, Right-ol~use assets
arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated uscful lives of the assets. If ownership of
the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or (he cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the assct.

(ii) Lease Liabilitics

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to
be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lcase
incentives receivable, varizble lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Company and paymenis of penaltics for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to
terminate. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rale are recognized as expenses (unless they are incurred
to produce inventorics) in the period in which the cvent or condition that triggers the payment oceurs. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Company uses ils incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilitics is increased
to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the Iease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasurcd if there is a modiftcation, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., chianges to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used lo determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset. Lease liability and ROU assets have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows,

iii) Shiort-term leases and leases of low-value asscts

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease termof 12
nonths or less [rom ihe commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets
recognilion ¢xemplion 1o leases of office equipment that are considered to be Jow value. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes ta the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
(All amounts in Rs. Lakhs unless stated othenwise)

m)

Company as a lessor

Leases in which the Company docs not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating [eascs. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized over the
lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are carned.

Inventorics
Inventories comprising of propertics held for sale are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA™) notifics new standard or amendments to the cxisting standards under Companics
{(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time o time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companics (Indian
Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable assets
acquired and tiabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting under Indian

Accounting Standards {Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition
date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Company does not expect the
amendmenl to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16— Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts received
from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recopnise such
sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its
recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the “cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the contract’.
Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental cosls of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct
labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a
clarification and the Company «oes not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 1092 - Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the * 10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether
Lo derecognise a financiat liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.
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Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited

Notes to the financial stalements for the year ended 31 March 2022

{All arrounis in Re.Lakhs unlesr saied othennsc)

Nete-5
Loans-Non current
{al nmartized cost)

a) Deposits for Underwriting/disiribution of real esiate projects

Asal
31 March 2022

As nt
31 porch 2021

Secunty Deposits
Considered peod-Unseeured 1673 54 1,54437
167354 1.544.37
b) Rental deposits
Considered good-Unsecured - 19.58
- 19.58
1.673.54 1.563.95
Note-6
Trade reccivables-Non-turrent Asal Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered gaod 493.65 1314 55
Unsecured, which have sipnificant increase in credit risk 1.647 04 1.039.70
2.140.69 285425
Lass expecied eredit foss allowance (.47 04 (1,039 70
493.65 1.8314.55
Avemy schedule as at 31 March 2022
Particulars 12 23
S less than 6 months |6 meonths -1 vear years YCArs AMare than 3 vears Total
Undispuied  Trade bles e
ti} pood 1568 1212 5411 108.70 303.07 493 65
Undisputed  Trade Receivables = which have
[TH significant anerease m eredit nisk 843 634 2020 3367 163.57 266 43
Undispued  Trade Receivahles - eredit
(iin) irmpaired . . . - - .
Disputed Trade Receivables - considered
(iv) 200d - - - - - -
Brisputed  Trade Receivables ~ which have
%} significant i in gredu risk - - . - . -
(vt Dispuied  Trade Receivahles = eredit d 4377 3391 151.32 304.01 34760 1,380.61
i) Ageing schedule ns at 31 Morch 2021
1-2 2-3
| Pamcul
51 1ears Less than 6 manths |6 months -1 year years years More than 3 years Toul
Undisputed  Trada receivebles ~ considered
it} good 177 59 4751 580 89 91628 9226 1.814.55
Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
i) igmifi i an credit nsk 8274 214 27064 42690 4169 845 41
Undisputed Trade Reeeivables — erednt
(ui) impaired - - . - - -
Disputed  Trade Reccivables — eonsidered
(iv} zood . - . . . -
Disputed  Trade Receivables — winch have
iv) sipmificant increase an credit nsk - . . - - -
wvil| Disputed  Trade Recenvables — credit impanred | 1901 509 6220 28.11 988 194 29
Note«T7
Other finaocial assets -Non current Asal Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Balanee with banks'™' .
-1n fixed deposits with onigina maturity of more than twelve manths 300 00 30000
Interest necrued on fixed deposits 210 ERS
Onher receivables
Unsecured, considered gond 2MN13 59311.65
Unsecured, which have significast increase in ¢redit mish 172338 3.162.38
1LOH 51 909103
Less lmpairment loss altowance {1,723.38) {3.162.38)
57123 6234.76
— ]

() Pledged against overdenft facility taken from HDFC Bank Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(AN wnounrs s Rs fokhy unlert staied othennse)

Nele=3
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets:

Arising out of cemporary differences due 10:
Eussllowances ws 43B of the [ncome Tax AL 1951
Disallowantes w's. 40A(7) of the Income Tox Act, 1961
Share based payment reserve

Secunty deposits measured at amormized cost
Underwniting deposi dat d cost

Effectef laffi {2 COmy fram revenue

Provisien for mmpatrment lass due to expected eredit loss pllowance
Ttighe of use assels

Property, plant and ¢quipment and other mtangible assets

Deferved tax assets (Total)

1) Deferred tax linbilities:
Deferred tax Uabilities (Total)

Mavement in deferred tax balanees for the vear ended 31 March 2022

{a

b)

Asat
31 Mareh 2022

Asat
31 March 2021

S0l
2200
729
123.06
545
L1561

168

53]
239
285
a7
15109
313
1371921
029
1901

1.353.19
ez

1,615.01

(a){b) 1.353.29

1,615.01

Charged/(credited)

Cliarpedf {credited)

Asat {0 statement of to other Asat
3t Mareh 2021 cemprebenslye 31 Mareh 2022
profil and Joss.
incare
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Dissllowances u/s 438 ofthe Income Tax Act. 1961 531 030 - 501
Disallowances w's 40A(7) of the Income Tax Act, 1981 2139 514 4 81 2206
Share options cutstanding resenve 285 {444) - 7.29
Sceunty deposits measured at omortized cast 071 a7 - -
Usnderwnting dep dat d cost 15109 3003 . 12186
Effectaf 1 of fi £ conmp from revenine 3413 28468 545
Provision far imparmend loss dug to expested ecedit foss allowance 137921 203.60 - 1,175.61
Right of use assets 029 029 - -
Property, plant and equj and other intangmble asscis 1903 22 - 1681
Deferred tax nssets (net) 1,61501 166,53 481 1:353.29
Movement in deferred 123 balances for ihe year emted 31 March 2022
" Charged! (¢cedired)
Asat (C::me;::::::::;ed to ather Asat
31 Mareh 2020 comprehensive 31 March 2021
profit or loss h
incanme
Deferred tax assets / (liabilities):
Disallowances ws. $3B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 to.42 5.1t - 531
Disallowances ws S0A(T}of the Income Tax Act, 1961 4178 6.91 (14.48) 2239
Provision for conungencees - - - -
Skare opuans outstanding reserve 157 (1.28) - 238
Secunity deposi d at d cost bl | 200 . o
Underwnting deg dau d cost. 9679 (5430) - 151.09
Effectal’ | of ft £ Comy from revenve 4929 1516 - 3413
Provision for impairment loss due 1o expected eredit lass allowance 1,783.71 40950 . 1,379.21
Right of use assels 5.0% 480 - 029
Propetty, plant and quig and other hle assets (267 {2170) - 1903
Deflerred tax nssets (net} 1,995.69 366.20 ([4.4_3] 1.615.01
Tax losses for which no deferred tax assels has been recognized:
Expury financial year {as per Income Tax Act, 1961) Asnt Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unused tax losses
1 Apnl 2026 - 31 March 2027 9T 9.2
1 April 2027 = 31 March 2028 330219 336219
1 Apnl 2028 - 31 Mfacch 2029 1,396 83 139583
1 Apn! 2029 - 31 March 2030 4,918 75 -
Unabsorbed dep for indefimite period 160.52 160.59
10.598.01 564933
i e
Neie-3
Otlier non-current assels Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 Morch 2021
Copatal advances. considered geod 382514 1232 66
215.14 12.322.66
Nete-10
Inventories Asad Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2024
Stock-ta-trade 12023 -
12033 :

Chartered

untants 2
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Indialulls Invesiment Advisors Limited
Notes 1o the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts 1 Ry Lakhs unless stared athenvise)

31 March 2022

Note-11
Trade receivables-Current Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Unsecured, considered good 140261 203930
U d, whuch have signal i n credie risk 728 22 1087.29
212783 3,126.53
Less Prowvision for impanment due to Expected eredit loss {725 22 {1.087.33)
L.ﬁl.ﬁl 203230
{i} Ageing sehedule as at 31 March 2022
Paruculars 12 3
S £oy Less than 6 menths | & menths -1 year weary years More than 3 wears Total
(i) ] Und: d  Tiade s = dered good 4448 3445 15373 308 85 250 10 140261
Undespuied Trade Recenvables - which ave
(] fi merease 1 ereds nsk 293 1781 79 49 159 6% 345 24 50
|t | Unctsputed Trade Recewvalites = ereds empained . - - . - -
(tv) | Doputed Trade Receivables — considentd pood - - . - - -
Dsputed  Trade Recowables = whuch have
[+) sign ificant mcrease in eredit risk - - - - - .
(vil | Disputed Trade Receivables = eredet impaired - - - - . -
(ii} Ageing scliedule az at 3 March 202t
Particulars 12 23
S nof Less thain 6 months | 6 months =E vear nars srars Maore_than 3 years Tatal
10| Undisputed Trade receivables — conudered pood 193 60 534 65283 1,019 77 105 69 2.039.30
Undisputed  Trad> Recenables = which have
_ﬂl'_)_ gﬁmﬁam increase m ercdit ol 1641 2348 1805 549 ¢l 5821 1.037 23
j(in) | Undisputed Trade Receivables — eredst prpured - - - - - -
(vl | Disputed  Trule Recgivables  considered good - - . - - -
Disputed  Trade Rrecivables — which have
) ignficant inerease in credit risk - - . - - -
()| Disputed  Trade Receivables — eredit impaired - - . - - -
Note- 12
Cashi and cash equivalents Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Cashin hand 241 255
Balanes with baiks
= in current accounts 07 635.54
21020 63.0%
Nole =13
Loans - Current Asat Atat
(at amartized cost) 31 March 2022 3t March 2021
a) Deposits for Underwriting/disiribution of real estate projects
Secunty deposits
« For Underwniting/Tistributian of real es1a1e projects 11286 29690
b) Inter-carporate deposits®
«to fellow subsidiary company - Indisbulls Distnbution Serviees Limied 12,219.50 58500
<) Other deposits (Unsecured) 930 a3
|u11.§§ 582.20
*Unsecured, short term iater comorate deposits beanng anterest at the rate of 9% per annum {repayable on demand) given 10 fellow subsidiary company fot its L activiies The
lcan has been wtiltzed for the purpose 1t was granted
Note = 14
(Hiier Finanelal Assels Asat Asat

31 March 2021

Otlier reecivables

Unsecured, considered geod 101284 35768
U 1. which have fi w1 credit sk 57540 190.69

1.688 24 54337
Less Ipasnment loss atlowance {575 40} (190 69)

1,112.84 357,68
Nole-15
Current fax agsels (nel} As at Asat

3 Morch 2022 31 Mareh 2021
« Advance meome tav/iax deducted at source (ner) 110,48 317.04
[Net of provisian for taxation 31 March 2022: Rs. 491 25 lnkhs (Previous year: Rs. 491 25 lakhs)]
11048 3704

Chartered {0

Srnd
Accountants | >




Indiabulls Investment Advisars Lintied
Nates ¢o the fnancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(A4l amounts in Re.Lakirs ueless siaied otherwise)

Nole - 16
Other current assets

Prepud expenses

Balance with govemnment autharines
Advance ta employees

Advanee to suppliers

Note= 17
Equity Share capltal

i Awthorized
Equity shanes of face value of Rs. 10 each

il. lssued and subscribed and paid up

35,55,00,000 Equity shares of face value of
Rs 10 each fully paid up

jil. Recanciltation ol the number of sharey and ding at the begi

Equity shares, fully paitl-up

Balznce at the beginming of the year
Add: Issued dunng the year*
Balance at the end of the year

iv. Shares held by Shareholders each hiolding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder

Equity shares of ¢ 10 each fully pad up

As at 31 Mareh 2022

Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
018 -
15789 14291
31299 3247
36 2
194.62 178,12

As nt 3T March 202t

No. of shares Armount No. of shares Amaunt
35,55,00.000 35,550.00 35.55,00,000 35,550.00
35,550.00 35.550.00
35.55.00,000 3555000 35.55,00,000 35,550 00
35,550.00 35.550.00

and at the end af the years

As at 31 March 2022

As ot 31 March 2021

No. afshares Amount No. of shares Amount
35,55.00.000 35.55000 3%.55.00,000 15,550.00
35.55.10.000 35.550.00 35.£5.00,000 155510

As at 31 Mareh 2022

As al 31 March 2021

No. of Shares held

“& of llolding

No, of Stizresheld “a af Holding

Dhani Loans and Services Limuted (formerly Ind:abulls Consiner 35,55,00,000 100% 35,55,00,000 100%

Funance Lamited) (*DLSLY)
35.55,00,0010 100% Jﬁészﬂﬂ!ﬂﬂﬂ 100%
v,  Shapesheld by promoters at the end of the year

March 31,2022

Pramoter name No, of Shares e of tolal shares % Change during the year
Dhamu Lozas and Senvices Limited {formeily Indiabulls Consumer Finance Licuted)
CDLSL" 35.55,00,000.00 100 0% N

March 31,2021

Promoler name [ No.ofShares | %bof total shares | % Cliange during ihe yrar ]
Dham Loans and Services Limited (formesly Indisbulls Consumer Finance Limited) | 35.53.00.000.00 | 100 03 Nil

vi. Riphts, preferences and restrictions altached ro the equity shares:

a The Company has oaly one ¢lass of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 pes shase Each holder of fully paid up equuty share is entinled to ane vote pes share The final
dividend proposed by the Basrd of Purectors, 1f any, is subject 1o the approval of the sharcholders in the enswing Annual Genesal Mecting

b. Inthe event of kquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shaces wall be entitled to recerve remasming assets of the Company, afier dustriburion of all preferential amounts
The distribution wall be in proportion to 1he number of equity shares held by the sharcholders

vii. The Comypany Iias notissued any bonus shares duning the current year and five years immediately preceding current year.

vifi, There are no shares issuad pursuant 10 contrect without payment being received in cash, allotted as fully pad wp by way of bonus issue. The Cempany has not bought back shares

during the last five years.

ix. DLSL beeare the Holding Company of the Company wath effect from March 20, 2020

x. Employee Stock Option Schemes [Refer Note: Note 35)

Chartered O

Accountants | >




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Noles to the [inancizl statenicnts for the year ended 31 Mnrch 2022
(Al amnours i Rs Lakhs unless stared othentise)

Note~18
Other equity Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Share based payments reserve 2881 11.34
Retained camunps (12,53707) {8.414 06)
Other resenes (14.31) 4303
Other component of equity 491 491

(12.517.66) !835-!.78!

{a} Share bascd payments reserve

The share based paymene resense 15 used 1o secord the value of equity-senled share based payment transactions with employees. The amounts recorded in share based payrent rederve are

trznsferred to shars premiumiretained eamings upon exérdise of stock aptions by employess.

() Retained earnings
R R d

ps are the lz1¢d profits eamned by the Company ull date, less transfer to general teserves, dividend fineluding dividend distnbution tax) and othes distnbutions made
to the sharcholders.
{c) Other reserves
Actuartal gains and losses on defined benclin plans are recognized in ather comprel ve inconie (net of taxes), and presented withn equity 1n other reserves.

(d) Other component of equily

Other conp of equity rep 1ransferred from share based payments reserve upon exercise of stock options by employees dunng the year
Nole- 19
Berrowings-Non current Asat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 202L
Vehiele loans from banks (securedj* ¥4+ e 553
Less. Current miaturity of leng-1emn borrowings (1.04) 349)
- 1.04
—a
{a) The above vehicle [oans ase secured against hypotl of respecti Hactes purchased Interest is paynble on such losns at 8.75%pa
(b) The above vehacle loans are repayable in equated monthly 1| aver a penod of five years
(¢} There 18 no continuing d=fault as on the Balance Sheet date in repayment of the loans or interest amownts.
Note =20
Provisions = Non Current Asat Asat

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for employee Benefits (Refer Note 36)

Provision for pratuuty 3546 86.19
B for P d ak 1940 2033
104.86 106.52
Neoie-21
Other finantial lEabilities-current Asat Asal
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current matunty af long-erm bomowings 1.04 449
1,04 449
Reconciliation of Hakilities arislng from financing netivitles
The changes m the Campany’s lisbilities arising from financing actvities can be classified as follows:
Particulars Ashount Ba,
31 March 2020 92.07
Cash lowsz
= Repaymenl {86 54)
« Proceeds .
31 March 2024 553
Cush flows:

« Repaymnent {4 49}
«Proceeds -
3t March 2002 1.04

. Nole-22
Other enrrent labilities Asal Asat
3 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sunyory ducs payables 2515 2483
Enployee related payables 121.24 76 56
Expenses and ather payables 188.48 7427
IHB7 175.66
Note =23
Provisions-current Asar As at

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Provision lor employee benefits (Refer Note 36)

Pravision for gmiuty 220 21
Provision for compensaled ehsences 053 075
2373 3.54

CEoa N
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(Al amownts in Rs.Laklis inless stated atherwise)

Nite « 24
Revenue from operations For the year ended For the year emled
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of services
Commission, brokerage and service income 811.61 94343
Consultancy [ees - 830
81161 956,73
Reconcilintion of revenue from contracts with customers with 31 March 2022 31 pIarch 2021
revenue from as above:
Commission, brokerage and service income
Revenue fiom coatracts as per contract price: 81161 968.43
Adjusunents mads to contraet price on account of:
a) Financing compenent included in revenue - (20.00)
Revenue from contritets with customers as per Statement of 811.61 948.43
Profit ad Loss .
Note - 25
Other income For the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest income from intcr-corporate deposits 44139 2575
Interest on fixed deposils 11.52 1601
Excess provisions wrilten back 257 152.76
Miscellancous Income - 706
Unwinding of interest income 224.22 . 95.14
Interest income from Income Tax Refund 14.08 -
Net gain an derecognition of leases 117 2132
714.95 298.04
Note - 26
Employce benefits expense Far the year entled Far the year ended
31 March 2022 3t March 2021
Salaries 479.84 517.56
Contribution to provident fund and other fands 0.54 L15
Stafl wellzre expenses 1.03 158
Gratuity and Conipensated Absences (Reler nole 36) 1387 1891
Employce share-based payment/ Stock appreciation rights (creditlexpense 1786 349
513.14 . 544.69
Note =27
Finance costs For the year entled For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest on bank overdraft 045 322
Interest on vehicle loans 028 0.70
Interest on Lease Liabilities (Refer note 47) 007 4.16
Interest on taxes - 6.01
0.80 14,09
Note - 28
Impairment losscs For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Provision for impairment loss due to expected credil loss 4,728.24 300.00
Bad debts wirtten ol credit notes issued 5,537.20 1,927.33
Less: Adjusted against provisions {5.537.20) - (1.927.07) 0.26

4,728.24 300.26
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
Al anronnts in Bs. Lakle taless stared othervise)

Note - 29
Other expenses

Far the year entled
31 Marceh 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

014
2031
038
4,60
017
1.85
33.39
11.00
033
078
0.l
3.50
1.50
7845
22690
0.13
0.0]

383.55

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Stamp duty 0.04
Software expenses 069
Lease rent 599.79
Rales and taxes 373
Electricity 403
Insurance 007
Comnunication -
Logal and prolissional 40,66
Travelling and convevance 4.54
Printing and stationery -
Office maintenance -
Repairs and nraintenance - others 11.52
Business promotion 113
Auditor’s renmneration-As auditor 175
Loss on sale/ scrapping of fixed asscls 54
Net boss on modification of financial assels 4.26
Bank Charpes 0.36
Miscellancous expenses 0.12
17925
Note=30
Tax expenses For the year ended
31 March 2022
Current tnx -
Tax adjustment related to earlier years 0.21
Delerred tax expense 266.53
Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 266.74

366.20

The major compenents of tax expense and its reconciliation 1o expected tax expense bascd on the enacted lax
(Previous year: 25.165%) and tlie reported (ax expense in statement of profit or Jass are as follows:

Accounting profit/ (loss) before tax expense (3,899.71)
Income tax rale 235,168%
Expected tax expense (981.43)

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected incume tux expense with reported income tux expense

366.20

rate applicable to the Company is 25.168%

2827
25.168%
LI

(44357
69.33
368.74
12.61
366.20

Tax effeet on items exempt under income tax (264.57)
Tax effect of expenses which will never be allowed 3.59
Tax losses for which no deferred tax was recognized 1,245.48
Others (5.05)
Deferred tax effect on temporary differences 266.53
Tax effect of carlier year items 022
266.74

Income tax expenses recoanized in the statement of prafit & loss

Note-31
Earnings per share:

366,20

Basic camings per share is computed by dividing the net profit atinbutable to equity sharehalders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the reporting year. Diluted camings per share are computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and also the weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for

the proceeds receivable, had the shares been actually issued at fair value.

Dilutive potential cquity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the year, unless tiey have been issued i a later date. The number of equity shares and
potential diluted equity shares are adjusted for stack sphit, bonus shares and the potential dilutive effect of employee stack option plan as apprepriate.

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ented
31 March 2021

Net Profit(Loss) for the year fiom cominuing operations {4,166.43)
Weighted nverage number of equity shares for computation of Basic EPS 35.55.00,000
Basie caming per share (Rs.} {(LI7)
Weighted avernge number of Equity Shares for computation of Diluted EPS 35.55,00,000
Diluted eaming per share (Rs ) (L17)

{394.416)
35.55,00,000
(0.11)
35,55.00.060
.10
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A

Note - 32

Financial instruments

Financial asscts and liabilities

The camrying amounts of financial instrunients by category are as follows:

Asat Asae
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Particulnrs

Finuncial assets measured at amortized cast

Loans 14,006.20 2446.15
Trade receivables 1,896.26 3,85385
Cash and cash equivalents 21020 G8.09
Oher financial assets 1.686.07 6,592.44
Total 17,798.73 12,960,53

Financial liabilities measurel nt nmortized cost

Borrowings (other than debst securities but including interest acerued) 1.04 5.53
Lease Liabilities - 8,79
Total 1,04 14,32

Fair values hierarchy

As per Ind AS 107, *Financial lnstruments: Diselosures”, tie far vatues of the financial nssets or financial liabilities ares defined as die price thay would be received
on sale of asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly ransaction between markel participants at the measurement date Financial assets and financial liabilitics
are measured at fair valee in the financinl statements and are grouped into three Levels of a fair value hierarchy. The fair value hiesarchy is based on inputs to
valuatict techniques that are used to measure fair valee that are either observable or unchservable. The hierreliy gives the hiphest priority to quoted prices in active
markels for identical assets or linbilities and lowest priarity to unobservable inputs. The three Levels are defited based o the observability of significant inputs to
the measurement, as follows:

The categories used are as follows:

Level I: Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical instruments 1 an active macket;

Level 2: Dirceily ti.c. as prices) ar indirectly {i.c. derived from prices) observable market inpuss. olleer than Level 1 mputs; and
Level 3: lnputs which are nat based on observable marke: data (unobservable inputs).

B.1 Fair vatlue of instrumentts measured at amortized cost

Fair value of instruments mensured nt nmortzed cost for which fair value is disctosed is as follows, these fair values are calewlated using Level 3 inputs:

Particutars As nt 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Financial assets
Loans 14,006.20 14,006.20 2.446.15 2446.15
Trade reccivables 1.896.26 1,896.26 3,853.35 3,853.85
Cash and cash equivalents 21020 210.20 68.09 68.09
Cther financial assets 1.686.07 1.686.07 6,592.44 6,592.44
Total 17.798.73 17.798.73 12,960.53 12.960.53 |
Fingncial Linbilities
Bomowings {other thaa debi secunties) L04 iR 533 5.53
Lease Liabilities - - 8.79 8.79
Tatal 104 1.04 1432 14.32 |

Fair value of cash and eash equivalents, trade receivables, loans and other financial assets approximate their carrying amounts largely due to current maturities of
these instruments. Accordingly, fair value hicrarchy for these financial instnuments liave not been presented above. Fair value mcasurement of Lease liabililics is not
required. Valuation techniques used to determting fair values are given below:

(i) The it values of the Campany's fixed interest bearing loans and receivables are determined by applying discounted cash flows ("DCF’) method. using discount
rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting peried. The own non-performance rsk as at 31 March 2021 was assessed to be
msignificant.

(ii) The fair values of the Company fixed rate interest-bearing deli seeurities and borrowings are determined by applying discounted cash flaws ("DCF') method,
using discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing mte as at the end of the reporting petiod. The Company did not have any variable rate intercst-bearing debe
segurities / borrowings,
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Note =33
Financial risk managenent

Risk Management

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and eredit risk. The Company s primary focus is to foresce the unpredictability of financial markets
and seck to mininuze potential ndverse effects on its financial pecformance. The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Company risk management framiework. The Company's risk are ged by a treasury depantmient under policics approved by the board of
directors. The board of direciors provides written principles for overall risk management. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and
how the entity manages the risk and the related impacet in the firancial statements.

Risk Exposure arisine fram

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, loans, trade and other receivables and other
financial assels

Liquidity risk |Borrowinps and other financial Liabilities
Market risk - | Borrowings
i st rate

In order to avoid excessive cancentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified porifolio.
Identified concentratians of credit risks nre controlled and managed accordingly.

A) Credit risk

Creddit nisk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge its obligation to the Company. The Company’s exposure 1o credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash equivalents, investments, {oan nssets, trade reccivables and other financial nssets. The Company continuously monitors defoults of customers and other
counterpartics and incorporates this information into its eredit risk controls.

Financial assets that expose the entity to credit risk* *: The carnrying amoum of finaneial assets represents maximum amount of eredit exposure. The maxinum
exposure to credit risk is as per the 1able below, it being total of carrying amount of ¢ash and cash cquivalents, trade receivables and other financial assets measured
at amorhised cast.

Asut Asat

Particutars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
(i} Low credit risk

Loans 14,006.20 2.446.15

Cash and cash cquivalents 210.20 6809

Trade receivables 1,896.26 385385

Qther financial asscts §.636.07 6,592.44
(ii} Migh ereditrisk

TFrade receivables 2326 2,126.93

Qther finnngial assets 2,293.78 3,353.07

* These represent gross carrying values of {inancial assets, without deduction for expected credit Losses

Esxpected Credit Loss (ECL) an Finnncial Assets

The Company conti 1y itars all fi il assets subject to ECLs. In order to determine wiiether an instrunteat is subject to 12 month ECL (12mECL) or life
time ECL (LTECL), the Company assesses whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk or the asset has become credit impaired since initial
recognition. The Company applies following quantitative 2nd qualitative criteria to assess whether there is significant increase in credit risk or the asset has been
credit impaired:

- Historical trend of collection from counterparty

- Company’s contractual riphls with respect 1o recovery of dues from counterpany

- Credit rting of counterparty and any relevant infonmatien availzble in public domatn

Trade and other receivables:
Exposures 10 cusiomers’ outstanding a1 the end of cach reporting pieriod ase reviewed by the Company to detcrmine incurred and expected eredit [osses. Historical

wrends of collection fram counterparties on timely basis reflects low level of eredit risk. As the Company has a contractual right to such receivables as well as the
contro! over such funds due from customers, the Conpany does not estimate any credit risk in relation to such r bles. Further, n Eeslieves that the
unimpaired amounts that are past dus by more than 180 days are still collectible in full, based on historical payment behaviour.

Cusli and Cash Equlvalents
The credit worthiness of such banks nnd financial institutions with whom cash and cash equivalents are held ts evaluated by the gement on {n engoing basis
nod i considered to be high

Loans
Lonns measurcd ot amortized cost primarily camprise security deposits given for undenwriting projects. Credit risk related 1o these othier financial assets is managed
by monitoring the recoverability of such amounts conlinucusly.

Other financial assets
Other financial asscls measured at amortized cost includes interest receivable . Credit risk related to these other financial assets is managed by menitoring the
recovernbitity of such amounts continuously.
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Note - 33 (continued):
a} Credit risk management

Fm_- banks and financial institutions, only high rates banks/financial institutions are accepted. The Company assesses and manages credit risk based on internal credit
rating systen. Internal credit raling is performed for each clnss of financial instruments with different characteristics. The Company assigns the fallowing credit
ratings to each class of [inancial assets based on the assumptians, inputs and factors specific 10 the elass of financinl assels.

(i) Low credit risk
(ii) Modcrate credit nisk
(ui} High credin risk

The Company provides for expected credit Joss based on the following:

Nature Asscts covered

Dasis of expectedd credis loss

Low credit risk Caslt and cash eqruvalens and foans

12 month expected eredit loss

High credit risk

Loans, Trade and other receivables and other financial assets

Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company eperates, a default on 2 financial asset is considered when the counter party fails 1o make payments within
the agrecd tune period as per contmet. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual eredit loss experience and considering differences between current and

historical economic conditians.

Assets are writlen off when there is no rcasonable expeciation of recovery. The Company continues to engage with parties whose balances are written ofT and

attempts to enforee repayment. Recaveries mnde nre recognized in statement of profit and loss.

b) Credit risk exposure
i) Expected credit losses for financial ussets

As €31 Mareh 2022 Estimated gross | Expected credit u(i::r:?:;;;::]rl::::
carrying amount Ingses Jroviston
Cash and cash equivalents 210.20 - 210,20
Loans 14,006.20 - 14.006.20
Trade reeeivables 4,268.52 237226 1,896.26
Other financial assets 3.984.85 2,08.78 1.686.07
Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount
As at 31 Mureh 2021 . net of impairment
carrying amount losses provision
Cash and cash equivalents 6309 - 68.09
Loans 244615 - 2446.15
Trade recetvables 5,980.78 2,126.93 3,853.35
Onher financial assets 9,945 51 3.353.07 6,592.44
1y Reconciliation of Provision for impalrment tosses under expected credit loss*:
Reconciliation of Provision for impairment losses “Trade receivables Other financind
under expected credit loss: asscls
Loss allowance on 31 March 2020 3,212.48 3,894.60
Impairment loss/{pnin) recognized during the vear 300.00 -
Adjusted against Bad delts wrilten off / credit notes issued (1.385.55) (541.53}
Loss allowance on 31 Mareh 2021 2,126,93 335307
Impaionent loss recapnized during the year 4,728.24 -
Adjusted against Bad debts wrilten off / credit notes issued (4482.91) (1.054.2%
Loss allowance on 31 March 2022 237226 2,298.78

* Also refer note 49

The expocted eredit loss allowance above is calculated based on assumptions about e risk of default and expected foss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making those assumptions and selecting nputs to the Joss allowanee calenlation, based an past history, existing conditions, as well as forward looking estimates at

the end of each reporting pariod.

<) Concentration of trade recelvables

The Company carrics on the business of underwriting/distnibution of 1eal estate projects on behalf of develapers and related consultancy services. The Company's
outstanding seceivables are for commission receivable from undenwriting/distribution of real estate projects on behalf of developers and related serviees. Loans and
other Gnaneial assets nijorly represents Ioans to related parties and deposits given for business purposes.

B} Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assoctated with its financial labilitics that are setled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as Far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet ils

liabilitics when they are due.

The Company mamtains flexibility in fnding by mainuining availability urder committed eredit lines. Management monitars the Company's liquidity pasitions
(also comprising the undrawn borrowing facilitics) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expecied cash flows. The Company also takes inlo zccount

liquidity of the maiket in which the entily operates.

Chartered
Accountants
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(AN amowmzs in Rs, Lakhs inless siated otherwise)

(i} Financing arrangzements

The Company had aceess 10 the following funding fagilities:

As at 31 March 2022 ‘Total fucility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one year 270.60 - 270.00
- Expiring beyond one year 50,000.09 - 50,000.00
Totul 50,270,00 - 50.270.00
As at 31 March 2021 Total facility Drawn Undrawn
- Expiring within one year 270,00 - 270.00
- Explnng bc)vnd oue year 50.00000 - 50.,000.00
Total 50,270.00 - 50.270.00
(&) Muturities of finuncial nssets aml liabilities
The tables elow analyze the Company financial assets and liabilities into relevant mainrity groupings based on their contractual maturities.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the cantrzetual undiscaunted cash fows:
As at 31 Marel 2022 Less than I year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Non-derivatives
Cash and cash equivalent ond other bank balances 210.20 - - - 210.20
‘Trade receivables 212783 2.025.60 13673 - +,290.16
Loans 12,349.07 - 165117 4186.97 14,487.21
Other financial assets 1.990.33 1.99452 - - 3.984.85
Total undiscounted fnancial ssets 16.677.43 4.020.12 1.787.90 436.97 22.972.42
Non-tlerivatives
Bomowings other than debt secunties - 1.04. - - 1.04
Total undiscounted financial linhilities - 104 - - L4
Net undiscounted finoneial nssets/linbilities) 16.677.43 4.019.03 1.787.90 436.97 22,971.38
As at 31 Marcl 2021 Less than I year 1-2 yeurs 2-3 years Alare than 3 vears Total
Non-derivatives
Casly auvd cash equivatent and edher bank balances 68.09 - - - 68.09
Trade receivables 3,126.52 2,118,983 31575 555.14 6,116.32
Loans 9135.52 2242 - 211330 3,049.30
Other Aeancial assets 851.48 9.094.01 - - 0,945.52
Total undiseaunted financint asseis 4.959.6¢ 11.235.44 31575 2.668.50 19,172.30
Non-derivatives
Borrowings other than debt securitics - 449 104 - 553
Lease liabilities 8.07 0.72 - - 879
Total undiscounted financinl liabilities 8.07 5.21 104 - 14.32
Net undiscounted financinl assets/(liabilities) 4.951.54 11,230,23 31471 2.668.50 19,164,98

C) Macket risk

Market qisk is the risk of loss of future carnings, foir values or future cash flows related to firancial instrument that may result from adverse changes in markel rates
and prices {such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates, other prices). The Company is exposed to market risk primarily related to interest rate risk and price risk.

n} Foreipn currency risk

The Company does not have into any forcign currency denominated assels er haiblities as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021. Accordingly, the Campany is nat

exposed to foreign curency risk.
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b)
i

]
i}

Interest rate risk

Liabilities

Interest mte nisk 1s the risk where Uie Company is exposed (o the risk that fair value or fisture cash fows of ils financial instruments will fluctuate s a result of
change in masket interest rates. Tle Company's policy is to minimize interest rate cash flow risk exposures en long-term financing. At 31 Maorch 2022 and as at 31
tarch 2021, the Company is exposed 1o changes in markel interest rates through borrowings.

Interess rote risk exposure
Below is the overall exposure of the Company to interest mte risk:

Purticulars

Asuat Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Variable rate borrowings - -
Fixed rate borrowings 1.04 5.53

Tatnl 1.04 553

Sensitivity
Below is the sensitivity of profit or loss in interest rales.

Asat Asat

Pasticul
Artientars 31Mareh 2022 | 31 March 2021

Interest sensitiviey®
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (50 bps) - -

Enterest raies — dectease by 50 basis points {50 bps) - -

=

* Holdmg all other variables constant

Assets
The Company’s fixed deposits are carried at amortized cost and are fixed rote deposits. They are therefore not subject Lo interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS 107,
since neither the canying amount nor the future cash flows will flucteate because of a change i market inlerest rates.

Price risk

Expasure

The Company’s exposure priee risk arises from investmiznts held and classified in the balauce sheet cither as fir value through other compreltensive income or at
fair value through profit or loss. To manage the price risk arising from investments, the Company diversifics its portfolio of assets. The Company doss not have any
finangial assets ns at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 that expose it to price risk.

Note-34

Capital management

The Company’s eapital management objectives are

= to ensure the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern

- to maintain an optimal capiial strueture to reduce cost of eapital

= o provide an adeq) retum to sharcholds

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the camrying amount of cquity less cash and cash equivalents as presented on the face of balance sheet.

Manngement assesses the Campany s capital requirements in order to maintain an efficient overll financing structure while avoiding excessive leverage. This takes
into account the subordination levels of the Company's various classcs of debs. The Company manages e capital steucture and makes adjusiments to it in the light
of changes in ecanomie conditions and the risk charncteristics of the underlying assews. In order to maintain ar adjust the capital struclure, the Campany may adjust
the amount of dividends paid to sharchalders, retar capital to sharehicdders, issie new shares, or scll assels to reduce debs.

Asa a
Particulars 31 M:lrchtZDZI 31 Mc‘l‘:ZDZI
Net debt® - -
Totnl equity 23,032.34 27,195.22
Net debt to equity ratio - -

* Net debt includes debt sceunities + barrewings other than debt securilies + interest aconied - cash and cash equivalents.

(This space has intentionally been left blank)
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Note-35

Employee stack option schemes:

The employees of the Company have been granted option as per the existing schemes of Dhani Services Limited (‘the Ultimate Holding Company'} {formerly
koown as Indiabulls Ventures Limited). On exercise, the employees will be allotted shared of the Ultiteate Holding Company.

A Grants during the year:

The Ultimate Holding Company has established the “Udaan Employee Welfare Trust” (“Udaan = EWT") {carlicr known as Indiabulls Ventures Limited -
Employees Welfare Trust) (*Trust™) for the implementation and management of its employees benefit scheme viz. the “Dhani Services Limited - Employee
Stock Benelit Scheme - 2020™ (Scheme) for the benefit of the employees of the Ultimale Holding Company and its subsidiaries. Pursuant to Regulation 3(12)
of the SEBI (Share Basad Employee Benelits) Regulations, 2014, fully paid up equity shares of 9,300,000 lying in the Trust bave been approprialed towards
the Scheme for grant of Emplayees Stock Options {ESOPs) and Share Appreciations Rights (SARs) to the employees of the Ultimate Holding Company and its
subsidiarics as permitted by SEBL The company will reat these SARS as equity and therefore they will be treated as equity settled SARs and accounting has
been done accordingly.

The Ultimate Holding Company has granted 35,00,000 and 1,52,00,000 employees stock options under DSL ESOP-2008 and DSL ESOP-2009 schemes
respectively. Detail of same is as below:

Namte of Scheme DSL ESOP - 2008 DSL ESOT - 2009
No. of oplions granted 18,00,000 17.00,000 4,00,000 98,00,000
Exercise price (3) 68 150 150 68
B, Employees Stock Options Schemes:
(i) Employces Stack Option Scheme -
2008 (DSL ESOP - 2008)
DSL ESOP - 2008
Total oplions under the sclieme (Nos.) 2,04,00,000
Options granted (Nos. ) 97,00,000 8,80.600 18,00,000 17,00,000
: (Rearant) (Reprant) (Regrant) (Reprant)
e . Five years, Five years, Five years, Five years,
Vesting period and percentage 20% cach year 20% cach year 20% each year 20% cacl year
2™ July each year, 25" March each 25" February each OI* April each year,
Vesting date commencing year, commencing year, ¢ ng co cing 01
2 July 2017 25 March 2019 25 February 2023 Apnl 2022
Exerci . 5 years from each 5 years from each 5 years from each 5 years from each
xercisable period . ) . i
vesting date vesting date vesting date vesting date
Exercise price () 2415 254.85 63 150
QOuistanding ot the beginning of I April 2020 46,392,200 515,800 - -
Gramted/ regranted duning the year (Nos.) - - - -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 14,400 4,29,000 - -
Exercised during the year {Nos.) - - B -
Expired during the year (Nos.) . - - -
Surrendered and eligible lor re-grant during the year (Nos.; - - - -
Quistanding as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.} 46,24,800 86,300 - -
Yested and exercisable as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.) 26,97,000 - - -
Remaining contractual life (weighled months) 54 73 - .
Outstanuling at the beginning of 1 April 2021 46,24,800 86,300 - -
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos,) - - 18,00,000 17,00,000
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) 30,000 59,400 - 17,00,000
Exercised during the year (Nos.) - - - -
Expired during the year {(Nos.) - - - -
Swrrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year (Nos., . - - .
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 {Nos.) 45,94,800 27,400 18,00,000 -
Vested and exercisable as a1 31 March 2022 (Nos.} 45,904,800 - . -
Remaining contrzetual life (weighted months) 42 72 95 -
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Note - 35
Employee stock opion schemes: (continucd)

(i) Employees Stock Option Scheme - 2009 (DSL -

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.)
Options granted (Nos.)

Vestinp period and percentage

Vestng date

Exercisable period

Exercise price ()

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2020
Granted/ regranted during the year (Nos.)

Forfeited during the year {Nos.)

Exercised dunng the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos.)

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year
Duotstanding as at 31 March 2021 {Nos.)

Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021
Granted/ regranted during the year {(Nos.)

Forfeited during the year (Nos.)

Exercised during the year (Nos.)

Expired during the year (Nos )

Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.)

Vested and exencisable as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.)
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months)

Total options under the Scheme (Nos.)
Options granted (Nos.)

Vesting period and percentage

Yesting date

Exercisable period

Exercise price ()

DSL ESOP - 2009 DSL ESQP - 2009 DSL ESOP - 2009 DSL ESOFP - 2009
2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000 2,00,00,000
20,50,000 95,00,000 1,00,00,000 6,69.400

{Regrant) (Regrant) (Regrant)
Ten years, Five years, Five years, Five years,
10% each year 20% each year 20% cach year 20% each year
13® April cach vear, 13™ May each year, 2* September cach 25" March each
commencing 13 commencing year, camnmencing year, commencing,
Apeil 2011 13 May 2017 2 Sepiember 2018 25 March 2019

5 years from cach
vesting date
3135

50,000

50,000
50,000
48

50,000

5 years from each
vesling date
16.00

30,97,600
572,000
25,25,600
12,62,800
55

25,25,600

24,000
25,01,600
25.01,600

43

5 years [rom ench
vesting date
219.65

$8,31,900
61,46,300
26,85,600

71

26,85,500
13,88,300

12,96,800

65

DSL ESOP - 2009

5 years from cach
vesting date
254.85

1,79,400

1.79.400

DSL ESOP - 2002

2,00,00,000
98,00,000
(Regrant)
Five years,
20% each year

25" February each
Year, commencing
25 Felrruary 2023
5 years from cach
vesting date
68.00

2,00,00,000
§4,00,000
(Regrant}
Five years,
20% each year

01% April cach year,
commencing 01
April 2022
5 years fram cach
vesting date

150,00
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Note - 35
Employee stock optlon schemes: (continued)

Qutstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2020 - -
Granted/ regranted during the ycar (Nos.) . .. -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) - -
Exercised duning the year (Nos.) - .
Expired during the year (Nos.) - -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year - -
Qutstanding as at 31 Marel: 2021 (Nos.) - -
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.) - -
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) - -

Outstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021 - -

Granted/ regranted duning the year (Nos.) 9§,00,000 £4,00,000
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) - 84,00,000
Exercised during the year (Nos.) - -
Expired doring the year {Nos.) - -
Surrendered and eligible for re-grant during the year { - .
Outstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 98,00,000 -
Vested and excreisable as nt 31 March 2022 (Nos.) - -
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 95 .

(iii} Dhtani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2019 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2019%).

The Scheme has been adopted and approved pursuant to: {s) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Uliimate Holding Company at its meeting held on 22
October 2019; and (b} a spegial resolution of the sharcholders’ of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through nostal batiot on 4 December 2019, result of
which were declared ann 5 December 2019,

This Scheme comprises:

a Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Option Plan 2019 (“ESOP Plan 2019™)
b. Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2019 (“ESP Plan 20197)
c. Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2019 (“SARs Plan 2019™)

In accordance with the Securities ond Exchange Board of Indin (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (the “SBEB Repulations”™), the Holding
Company has set up "Udaan - Employee Welfare Trust” ("Trust™) for the purpose of implementation of tlte Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes
s aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with (he “SBEB Regulations”, is authorised to purchase uplo an nggregate of 10,500,000 {One Crare Five Iakh) fully
paid-up equity shares, being not mere than 2% (Two percent} of the fully paid-up cquity share capital of the Ultimate Holding Company as on the date of
approval of sharehiolders, from the secondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has nppropriated 10,400,000 fillly paid up equity shares of the Ulimate
Halding Company purchased by the Trust under the Scheme.

__DSL-ESBS2019_

Total oplions under the Scheme (Nos. ) 1,05,00,000
Options pranted (Nos.) 1,04,00,000
Vesting period andl percentage . Three yeus,

33.33% cach year

Vesting date 17 August cach

year, commencing

17 August 2021

Exercisable period ’ years from each

vesting date

Exercise price () 250
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Note- 35
Employce stock option schemes: (continued)

QOutstanding at the beginning of 1 April 2020 -
Granted during the year (Nos.) 1,04,00,000
Forleited during the year (Nos.) -
Exercised during the year (Nos.) -
Expired during the year {Nos.) -
Surrendered ond eligible for re-prant during the year -

Outstanding as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.) 1,04,00,000
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2021 (Nos.) -
Remaining contractunl life (Weighted Months) 77
Quistanding at the beginning of 1 April 2021 1,04,00,000
Granted during the year (Nos.) -
Forfeited during the year (Nos.) -
Exercised during the year (Nos. ) -
Expired during the year {(Nos.) -
Surrendered and eligible for re-gramt during the year .
QOutstanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.} 1,04,00,000
Vested and exercisable as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 34,606,667
Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) 65.00

(iv) Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benelit Scheme 2020 (“Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBS 2020™).

The Scheme has been adopled and approved pursuant to: (a) a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Holding Company at its mieeting held on 23
January 2020; and {b) a special resolution of the sharehalders’ of the Ultimate Holding Company passed through postal ballot on 20 March 2020, result of
which were declared on 21 March 2020,

This Seheme comprises:

a Ditnni Services Limited Eniployees Stock Option Plan 2020 (“ESOP Plan 20207)
b. Dhiani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2020 (“ESP Plan 2020™)
c Dhiani Services Limited Stock Apprecintion Rights Plan 2020 (“SARs Plan 2020™)

Int accordance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Reguintions, 2014 (the “SBEB Regulations™), the Ultimate
Holding Company has set up "Udaan - Employees Welfare Trust” (Trust) for the purpose of implenieniation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective
Schemes as aforesatd. The Trust, in compliance with the “SBEB Regulations™, is authorised to purchase upto an aggregate of 93,008,000 (Nincty Three lakh)
fully paid-wp equity shares, being not mere than 2% (Fwo percent) of the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Ultimate Holding Company as an the date of
approval of shargholders, from the sccondary market. The Ultimate Holding Cempany has appropriated 93,00,000 fully paid up equity shares of the Ulimate
Holding Company purchased by the Trust under the Scheme.

DSL-ESBS 2020
Total options under the Scheme {Nos.) 93,600,000
Options granted (Nos.) 93,00,000
Vesling period and percentage Three years,

33.33% cach year

Vesting date 7% April each year,
commencing 7 April
2021
Exercisable period 5 years from cach
vesling date
Exercise price (3) 250
Outstanding as at 1 April 2021 {Nos,) -
Granted/ segrnuied during the year (Nos.} 93,00,000
Exercised ditring the year (Nos.) -
Expired during the year {Nos.) -
Surrendered and ¢ligible for re~prant during the year -
QOuistanding as at 31 March 2022 (Nos.) 93,00,000
Vested and exercisable as a1 31 March 2022 (Nos.) NA
Remaining contraciual life (Weighted Monthis) NA

Remaining contractual life (Weighted Months) -
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Note- 35

Employee stock option schemes: (continued)

(v} Dhani Services Limited - Employee Stock Benefit Scheme 2021 (*Scheme™) ("DSL-ESBES 2021").

The Scheme has been adopted and spproved pursuant to: () a resolution of the Board of Directors of the Ultimate Holding Company at its meeting held on 06

March 2021; and (b} a special resolution of the sharcholders’ of the Ultimate Helding Company passed through postal ballat an 15 April 2021, result of which

This Scheme comprises:

a
b.
c.

Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Opticn Plan 2021 ("ESOP Plan 2021")
Dhani Services Limited Employees Stock Purchase Plan 2021 (“ESP Plan 2021™)
Dhani Services Limited Stock Appreciation Rights Plan 2021 (“SARs Plzn 20217)

In accardance with the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (lhe “SBEB Regulations™), the Holding
Company has set up "Udaan - Employees Welfare Trust" (Trust) for the putpose of implementation of the Scheme as per the terms of the respective Schemes
as aforesaid. The Trust, in compliance with the “SBEB Regulations™, is authorised 1o purchnse upto an aggregate of 1,05,00,000 (One Crore Five lakh) fully
paid-up equity shares, being not more than 2% (Two pereent) of the fully paid-up equity share capital of the Ultimate Holding Company as on the date of
approval of shareholders, from the secondary market. The Ultimate Holding Company has not granted any options/ SARs under the said Scheme as at 31

March 2022,

Fair Yaluation

The details of fair value of the options/ SARS as determined by an Independent firm of Chantered Accountants, for the respective plans using the Black-Schales

Mertont Option Price Model:-

DSL ESOF - 2008

97,00,000 8,380,600 18,00,000 17,00,000
Options Regranted Options Regranted Options Onptions
Regranted Regranted
1 Exercise price () 24.15 254.85 - -
2 Expected volatility * 4297% 47.15% 69.05% 69.18%
3. Option Life (Weighted Average) (in years) ] 6 ] [
4. Expected Dividends yield 10.82% 1.10% 1.01% 1.26%
5. Risk Free Inerest rate T45% 7.56% 5.50% 5.25%
6. Fair value of the opticns () 431 130.05 3458 8998
DSL ESOP - 2009
20,50,000 95,00,000 1,00,00,000 6,659,400
Opilions Options Regranted Options Regranted Options Regranled
1. Exercise price (3) 3135 16 219.65 254.85
2. Expected volatility * 48.96% 40.74% 46.70% 47.15%
3 Expected forfeiture percentape on each Nil Nil Nl Nil
vesting date
4. Expected dividends yield 6.86% 16.33% 1.27% 1.10%
5. Risk free interest rate 8.05% 7.45% 6.54% 7.56%
6. Fair value of the options () 919 1.38 106.31 130.05
* The expected volalility was determined based an historical volatility data.
DSL ESQP - 2009 DSL-ESBS 2020 DSL-ESBS 2019
983,00,000 84,00,000 93,00,000 1,04,00,000
Options Options SARs SARs
I Exercise price () 68 150.00 250 250
2 Expected volatility * 69.05% 69.18% 76.57% 8.45%
3. Expected forfeiture perceninge on cach § 6 Nil Nil
vesting date
4. Expected dividends yield 1.01% 1.26% 1.26% 1.71%
5. Risk free interest rate 5.50% 5.25% 4.36% 4.17%
6 Fair value of the options (¥) 34.58 89.98 65.82 5549

* The expected volatility was determined based on historical volatihty data.
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Mote - 35
Employee stock aption schemes: (continued)

D. Share based payment expense:

The Company has recognised / (reversed) of Share based payments expense to employees in the stalement of Pralfit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2022

as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
17.86 549

Share based payments (reversal) / expense

17.86 549
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A

U]

(ii}

Note - 36
Employec henefits

Defined condribution plans
Provident fund

The Company pays fixed contribution to /dendent fund at predeiermined rates to a registered /dendent fund administered by the Government of India,
which invests the funds in permitted securities. Both the Company and employces make predetermined contributions 1o the /dendent Fund. The
contributions are normaily based on a certain proportion of the employee's salary. During the year, the Company has recognized the following amaunts
in the Statement of Profit and Loss in respect of defined contribution plans and included in *Employee benefits expense”.

Particulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Employer's Contribution made te:
(i) employees’ provident fund organisation 0.53 1.03
(i) employees' state insurance corporation 0.01 0.10
(ifi) labour welfare fund 0.00 0.02
Total 0.54 1.15

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity (unfunded)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The
liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuariol valuation. Gains and losses through re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability/(asset)
are recognized in other comprehensive income and not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Risks associated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in future valualions will

Solary increases also increase the liability.

Discount rate Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liability.

Mortality & disability  [Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than nssumed in the valuation can impact the liablities.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

Withdraywals valuations can impact Plan’s liability.

Antount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars’ Asat Asat

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of obligation 87.66 $8.93
Fair value of plan asscts = —
Net oblipation recoznized in balance shieet as provision 87.606 88,938

Amount receznized in the statement of profit and loss is s under:

Year ended Year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 774 9.42
Past service cost including curlailment gains/losses - -
Gains or Losses on Non routine settlements - -
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 6.13 249
Interest income on plan assets - -
Net impact on profit (before tax) 13.87 18.91
Actuarial {gain)/loss recognized during the year {19.12) 57.51

Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income {3.25) 76.42




Indiabulls Investment Advisors Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounts in Rs.Lakhs unless stated otherwise)

(i

(iv)

v

(vi)

Note - 36 - Employee benefits (continued)

Movement in the present value of defincd benefit obligation recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of defincd benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 88.98 173.93
Acquisilion adjustment {net) - -
Current service cost 774 9.42
Interest cost 0.13 9.49
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Benefits paid (34.30) (46.33)
Actuarial loss/{gain) on cbligation

Actuarial (gain)loss on ansing from change in demographic assumption - -

Actuarial {gain)loss on arising from change in financial assumption (4.95) 031

Actuarial (zain)/loss on arising from experience adjusiment 24.06 (57.82)
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 87.66 88.98 |
Mujor catesories of plan nssels (as percentage of total plan assets):

As at Asat

Particulars

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Government of Indra Sceurities
State Government securities

High Quality Corporate Bonds
Equity Shares of listed compariics
Property

Funds Managed by Insurer

Bank Balance

Total

Movemenl in tle plan assets recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 Mnrch 2021

Fair valuc of plan assets at beginning of year
Actual return on plan assets

Employer’s contribution

Benelits paid

Fair value of plan asscis at the end of the year

Actuarial assumplions

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Murch 2022 31 Mareh 2021

Discounting rate 7.18% 6.79%
Future salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Withdrawal rate

Up to 30 ycars 3% 3%

From 31 to 44 years 2% 2%

Above 44 years 1% 1%
Weighted averape duration 17.88 18.14

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of JALM (2012 -14)

Gratuity is payable to the employees on death or resignalion or on retirement at the atainment of superannuation age. To provide for these eventualities,

the Actuary has used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ultimate 1able.
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Nate - 36 - Employee benefits (continued)

(vii} Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability

(viii)

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 87.66 83.98
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % (5.85) 6.21)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 6.40 6.82
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 37.66 88.98
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 6.51 6.91
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % {6.00) (6.34)

Seasitivitics due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change due to these is not calculated
Sensitivities as to rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the
reporting peried and may not be representative of the actunl change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant, When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Umit Credit Method) used to calculate the linbility recognized in the
balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared with the
previous period.

Asat Asat
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 31 Marceh 2022 31 March 2021

Yeurs
0 to | year 220 279
1 to 2 year 1.63 1.69
2to 3 year 1.58 1.63
3 to4 year 344 .56
4 to 5 year 1.32 328
5to 6 year 127 1.30
6 vear onwards 76.22 76.73

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual period beginning afier the Balance Sheet date, towards Gratuity is Rs.
14.38 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 15.48 lakhs). -

Compensated absences (non-funded)
Provision for unfunded compcnsated absences for all employees is based upon actuarial valuations carried out at the end of every financial year. Major
drivers in actuarial assumptions, typically, are years of service and employee compensation. Commitments are actuanially determined using the

*Projected Unit Credit’ Method. Gains and losses on changes in acluarial assumptions are accounted for in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Risks nssociated with plan provisions

Actual salary increases will increase the Plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rale assumplion in future valuations will

Salary increases also increase the liability.

Discount rale Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan’s liabilily.

Mortality & disability  |Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the liabilities.

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent

"
Withdrawals valuations can impact Plan’s liability.
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(i

(i)

(i)

Note - 36 - Employee benefits (continued)

Amount recognized in the balance sheet is as under:

Asat Asat
Particulars 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021
Present value of obligation 19.93 21.08
Fair value of plan assels - -
Net oblization recognized in balance shect as provision 19.93 21.08
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and luss s as under:
Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 Murch 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 2.56 298
Past service cost including curtailment (gains)/losses - -
[nterest cost on defined benefit obligation .53 2.14
Amount recognized in the statement of profit and loss 409 5.12
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation recognized in the halance sheet is as under:
Particulars : Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Presant value of defined benefit obligation as at the beginning of year 21.10 41.44
Acquisition adjustment- (net) - -
Current service cost 2.56 298
Interest cost [.53 2.14
Past service cost including curtailment gains/losses - -
Benefits paid (040} (3.62)
Actuarial loss/{gain) on obligation
Actuatial (gain)loss on arising from change in demogrophic assumption - -
Actuarial (gain)loss on arising from change in financial assumption (1.23) 0.05
Actuarial {cain)loss on anising from experience adjustment (3.63) {21.89)
Preseat value of defined benefit obligation as at the end of the year 19,93 21.10
Actuarial assumplions
. Year ended Year ended
Particulnrs 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discounting rate 7.81% 6.79%
Future salary increase 3.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (years) 60.00 60.00
Weighted average duration of PBO 17.88 18.14
Withdrawal rate
Up to 30 years 3.00% 3.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
Above 44 years 1.00% 1.00%
Leave
Leave availment rate 5.00% 5.00%
Leave lapse rate while in service Nil Nil
Leave lapse rate on exit Nil Mit
Leave encashment rate while in service Nil Nil

Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of TALM (2012 —14)[Previous year 100% of [ALM (2012 - 14)]
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)

{vi)

Note - 36 - Employce benefits (continued)

Sensitivity analysis for compensated absences

Parficulars Year ended Year ended

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 1993 21.08
- Impact due to inerease of 0.50 % (1.45) {1.58)
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % 1.36 171
Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 19.93 21.08
- Impact due to increase of 0.50 % 1.60 1.74
- Impact due to decrease of 0.50 % (1.46) {1.59)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals arc not material and hence impact of change due (o these is not caleulated.

Sensitivities as 1o rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement and life expectancy are not applicable.

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based an reasonably possible changes of the respeclive assumptions oceurring at the end of the
reporting period and may not be representative of {he actual change. It is based on a change in the key assumption while holding all other assumptions
constant. When calculating the sensitivity to the assumption, the method (Projected Unit Credit Method) used to calculate the liability recognized in the
balance sheet has been applied. The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the seasitivity analysis did not change compared with the

previous period.

As at Asat

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 31 March 2022 31 March 2421
years

0to ] year 0.53 0.75
1 to 2 year 0.38 0.39
210 3 year 037 041
3104 year 0.65 0.33
4 to 5 year 032 0.63
510 6 year 0.31 0.33
6 vear onwards 17.36 18.19

The employer best estimate of contributions expected to be paid during the annual peried beginning afier the Balance Sheet date, towards compensated
absences is Rs. 3.82 lakhs (31 March 2021: Rs. 4.39 lakhs}.

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Sccurity, 2020 which would impact Lhe contributions by the company towards Provident Fund
and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and has
invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once
the subject rules are notified and will give apprapriate impact in its financial statements in the period in which the Code becomes effective and the
related rules to determine the financial impact are published.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Note =37

'Y

As per the best estimate of the management, no provision 1s required to be made as per Indian Accounting Standard 37 (Ind AS 37) - Provistons, G gent 1
specified under Section 133 of the Compantes Act, 2013 (“the Act™) read together with the Comg {Indian Al ing Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended} in respect of any peesent

oblization as a result of a past event that could lead to a probable outllow of resources, which wauld be i to settle the obligati

Note =38

and Contingent Asscts as

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped! re-uranged wherever considered necessary to confinm 1o the figures presented in the current year,

Nate -39

The Company has not entered into any derivative contracts duning the year. The Company daes nat have any fareagn cusrency exposures as at 31 March 2022 (Previous year Rs. Nil)

Note =40
There are 0o contingent lrabilitics to be reported as at 31 March 2022 (Previous year * Nil}

Note -4l

Capital commutments outstanding as at 31 March 2022 Rs.15,780 76 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 15,778.27 lakhs) net of capual advances of Rs 3,525.13 Inkhs (Previous year Rs 12,322 66 Iakhs)

Note -42
Disclasures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Eulerprises Develojiment Act, 2006:
Asat Asat
Porticulars ‘ 31 March 2022 3t March 2021
Amount {Rs.) Amount (Rs.)
(i) Principat inw unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year il il
(u1} Intercst due thereon remarming unpaid to any lier as at the end af the accounting year Nil Nl
(111) The amount of interest paid alonn with the amounts of the pavinen: made to the supplier beyond the ap d day Nil il
{iv) The amount of interest due and pavable for the year Nil Nil
(v) The amount of imterest accrued and remuning unpmd at the end of the year Nil Nil
(i) The amount af further imerest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually
|paid Nil Nil

The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterpnses has been determmed to the extent such parues have been identified on the basis of information pvailable with the

Company. This has been relied upon by the auditers. '

Note -43
There are nie batrawing osts 1o be capitalized 2s at 31 March 2022 (Previous year Rs. Nil)

Note -44
Segnent reporling

The Company eperates in a single reportable seg ie "Underwniting/distributron of real estaie prajects on behalf of developers and related services”, whieh ltas similar risks and retums for
the purpose of Jad AS 108 “Operating segments”, 15 cansidered to be the only reportable business segment The Company derives ats revenues peimnrily from wnderwniting/distribution of real
estate prejects on behalll of developers and its custemers across India. Further, the Company 18 aperating 1 India which is considered as a single geographical
reported in a manner consistent with the intemal reporting provided 1o the chiel operating dectsion maker (CODM). The CODM?s funchien 15 10 allocate the resources of the entity and assess the

performance of the af g sepment of the Cempany Al assers of the Company are domiailed in Indsa.

Operating sep are
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Notes ta the Hinancinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Al amounis in Rs. Lakhs unless starcd otherwise)

Note =45
Assels pledged as sccurity

The carryine amaunts of nssets pledoedfhvpoth d _ns security arg:
Particulars As st Asat

31 Marcch 2022 31 March 2021
Velucles 10.23 1340
Fixed deposits 300.00 300.00
Total nssets pledgedl as security 310.3 313.40
Note -46

Ensclosures in respect of Ind AS - 24 "Related Peny Disclosures' as speaified under Sectiont 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 {"the Act™) read together with the Companies (Indian Aecounting

Standagds) Rules, 20135 {as amended):

(u} Detuils of related parties:

{Formerly knowm as 1VL Finance Lamited)

Nature of relntionship [Nnmtes of related partics

() Where control exists

|Ukimate Holding Company Dham Services Limited (Formerly known as Indiabulls Ventures Limated)

Holdirig Compary Dliam Loans and Services Litued (Formetly known as Indiabulls Consumer Finance Limated )

ﬁ’clluw Subsiliary Company *

Indiabulls Distribution Services Linuted

* witly whom transactions have been entered into during the year

b) Sigaificant Transactions with Related Parfies during the year ended 31 March 2022

Note: Figures in italics relate to the previous year

{I¥} Detail of lians are geanied to pronteders, diveciory, KMPs and the related panies

Naoture of Transactians Entities under Holding Total
commion contral Company
Finnunee
[nter Corporate Deposit Given 221950 - 12,219 50
" Rt O 9 ; ,

@ g dusing she year) 555,00 - 385.00
Income

. 441 19 - 44139
Interest income on Inter Corporate Deposits 355 - 35.75
Espenses
Reimbursement of Expenses received (Salary) IE = 137
Remmbursement of Expenses recerved (Rent and office maintenance) 3386 N FTTT
Retmbursement of Expenses paid (Rent and office maintenance) _' 100 ‘? 100.»37
Nowe: Figures in italics relate to the previous year
(¢) Ouistrnding as at 3t Maceh 2023;

. Entitics unler
Nature of Trausacion comman eantrol Total
Finance
As at 31 March 12,219 50 12,219 50
. 2022
lrter Corporate Depasits Grven s at 31 March 58500 58500
2021

As at 31 March 2022

As 2131 Mavel 2021

Amount of loan or

Percentape o (e

Ameunt of loan or

Percentage 10 the to1al

Type of Borvower advanee n the taiat Lonns and advanee in the Loans and Adymces
nature of foan Advances nature of loan in the nature of leans
outstanding I the natuee of lonis |outstanding

Promoioter - 0.00% - 0.00%

Directors - 0.00%| - 0,00%]

KMPs - 0.00%| - 0.00%]

Related parties 12,219.50 84.35%]| 585.00 19.33%)

In accordance wath Ind AS 24, disclosures i respect of tansactions with wenufied relzted parties are grven only for such period dunng which such relauonships existed Related Party
relationships are given above are as identified by the Company and relied upon by the Auditors

(this space has intenhionally been Ief blank)
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Nate -47
Leases:
The Company has lease contracts for various office premises used in ils operations The Company's obligations under its leases are seeured by the lessor’s utle to the leased assets. Generally, the

Company is restricted from assipnmg and subleasing the leased assels

The Company also has certmn leases of office premuses with bease terms of 12 months of less. The Company applies the “shortsterm lease recogmtion exemptions for these leases

Leases ane shown as follaws 1 the Compamy’s batance sheel and Statement of profit and loss:

Set out bedow are the cumymng of nght-of-use assets ised and the mos ements during the period:
Following are the chanses in the earrving value of right of use assets {"Itol Asset™) lor the vear endeil March 31, 2022;
|Pnrti:ulnrs Asat Asnt
31 Mareh 2022 31 Murch 2021
Opening halance 758 333.49
Additions dunng the year - -
(700 {31071}
Amoitized dunmp the vear* ({0.58) (15 20)
Closing balanee - 7.58
*The aggregate depreciation expensc on Jught of use assets s weluded undee depreciaton and amonization expense in the Stafement of Profit and Less.
The following is the movem ent in lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2022:
Pariiculars Asat . Asat
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Opentag balance 879 353,97
Addivions during the year - -
Deletions {8.18} (332 03)
Finance cost accrued duning the year 0.07 4.
Payment of leass liabilitics 065 {17.11)
Closing balance - 8.7
The following is the income from subleasing right-of-use assets during the year ended March 31, 2022:
Porticulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 Marel 2021
Inconie from subleasing risht-of-use assels - 24.86
Taial - 24.86
The following is the Gain/{Loss) on termination oflenses during the vear ended March 31, 2022;
Particulurs Far the year ended For the year endled
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Gain on termination of leases 117 21.32
Tolal 1.17 21.32
The table beluw provides details regarding the contrac¢iual maturities of lease lnbilities as at March 31, 2022 on an undisconnted basis:
Particulnrs Asat Asat
3L March 2022 31 March 2021
Watliin One year - 807
QOne to Five years - 07
More than Five years - -

Rental expense recorded for short-term leases 15 R3.99.79 Lakhs (Previous year Rs 20 3| Lakhs) for the year ended March 31,2022,

Note - 48
1) Expenses apportioned by the Ultimate Holding Company/Holding Company/Fellow Subsidiary Company 10 the Company (excluding goods and services tax/servies tax), duning the year ended
31 March 2022 include:

§ For the year
Partieulars F‘;’l'i'; )c:;lrzc:;d;d ended
nare 31 March 2021
Tolding Company
- Rent (meluding office mamienance) 100 47 .
u} Exp PP d by the Comy o us LI Holding/Holding/Fellow Subsidiary Company (excluding goods and senices tas/senace wx), dunng the year ended 3) March 2022
include
For the year
Particulars For the year ended ended
31 March 2022
31 March 2021
Fellow Subsidiary Campany
= Rent {including office nai 1 - 24 86
|- Salary . 3.31
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Notes to the finnncial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
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Note =49
COVID-19 was deslared a pandemic 1 March 2020 and stnce then it has had a sizable impact on the economes of vanous countries. Nations across the glabe at this juncture seem to be retuming

to normaley as 2 result of waning infection levels An aggressive vaccination drive by the government i India has ked to significant improvement tm the situatan which bas provided a pathway 1o
Ue normalisation af econorme actisaty However, the saivauen wall have 1o be menitored il the pandemic 15 finally put to rest Since the situation 15 rapidly evolving, its effect on the operations of

the Company may be difitrent from that estimated as 21 the date of approval of these finzncial statements. The Company will continue 1o closely noz material ¢l in ntatkets and future
econamic conditions. The unipact of COVID-19 on the financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements owing to the rature and duration
al COVID-19 There has been no matenal change i the controls or processes followed in the closing af these fi 1 of the Ci

‘The Company has assessed the impact of the Covid-19 pandentic on is business operations and financial position and has reviewed cufren! md of fiture condiions Dunng the
year ended March 31, 2022, the Company had recorded Rs 4728.24 lakhs 35 provision for exp i credit [oss on ¢ertain finanaial assets.

The Company believes it bas considered all possiile impact of known events arising out of COVID-19 pandemic in the preparztion of these fi ] The impact of COVID-
1%2isa ining p given the 1 with its nature and duration and accordingly the impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial statements The Company will continue to monitor any matenal changes to futere economie conditions. However, since the siuation is rapidly evolving, s effect on tlie operations of
the Company may be different from that cstuniated as at the date of approval of these financial striements The Company will continue 1o eloscly ial changes in markets and future

econamic conditions.

Nole =50
Accounting Ratios
At at Asat
Particulars Nuniemtor 1 i 3 Mlarch 2022 31 March 2021 Variance % | Repuirks
Primanly due to increase
inter-company loans given
{a) Curent Ratio Currem Assels Curresn Liabilines 4572 2004 128%|to related parties during
finacnial year ended March
31,2022
Due to reduction 1n
8% borrowings  dunng  the]
financial year ended March
(b} Debi-Equsn Ratio  Total Debt Total Equity 0.0000 0 0002 31, 2022
Prmanly duc to redi
(c) Debt Senvice Coverage Ratio Eanungs avalable for debt service Debi Servics ’ 2567%|of borrowing costs during]
2425 091 Fy 21-22
Due 10 mncrease in loss afted]
{d) Rewsen on Equity Ratio Net profit /(lass) afier lax :;:lr:f:cs;f: 1051% |tax dunng the financai year|
-16 59%| -] 4% ended March 31, 2022
{c) Inventory Tumaves Ratio Cost of geads sold .'Aw.r:lge value of % NA
Jinvemary - .
Due 1o decrease in trade]
(1} Trade Receivable Tumover Rauo Net crodit sales Average trade 25% recenable and sale - of
recevables services dunng the financial
028 023 year ended March 31, 2022,
() Traulo Pasable Tumover Rano Net eredil punchiases Average mde 0% NA.
Ipavables - -
(h) Nel Capital Tumover Ratio Revenue | Average warking 0.05 0.26 Due Lo Increase i average
capual {workng capnal duning the
financinl year ended March
31, 2022
Due to merease of Loss
113 Net Profit Raio Net profits floss) after tax Revenue S513.35% 1 23% 1asy[2ter  tax  dunng  the
finmancia) year ended March
31, 2022,
Bue to higher Loss after tax
) Retum en Copital Employed Eamings before meeest and tay Capital Employed 3240420 |dunng  the financil year
16.93% -0.05% ended March 31, 2023,
Average cost ol NA
() Rewsm oo Investment Income generated from investments investments - . -l 0%
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Nales to the Minancinl statements for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Af amourns an Rs.Lakhs unless sigied athenvise}

Nole -51

(1) The Company has not receved any funds from any person(s) or entiy(ies), including foreipn entities (Funding Party) wath the undersianding (whether recorded m writing or otherwase) that the
Company shall, :

() directly or indrectly lend or invest m other persons ot entities wdentified in any marner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Bencliciarics) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like ta ot on behalf of the Uli:mate Benelicianes

(it} The Company has not advanced or loaned or invesied any funds frem any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics ( Intermediaries) with the understanding (whesher recorded i
wriling or atherwse) that the Intermedianes shall,

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities tdentified 1n any manner whatscever by or on behif of the Company (Ultimate Benefigiaries) or
{b) provide any muarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of tic Ultimate Denefictarics.

Note - 52

Thereareno p ps tnetiated or pending agamst the C for holdirg army benaru property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) dunng the year ended March 31, 2022

Note -53
The Company has not takert oy bomrovangs from banks of fmancal insutulions on the basis af secwrity of curment assets duning the vear ended March 31, 2022

Note = 54
The Company has net been declared a willfu) defaulier by any bank or financial Instituuon of other lender during the vear ended Mareh 31, 2022,

Note - 55
The Compaimy has not enitered into any transactions with companies struck off under secuion 248 of the Comparues Act, 2013 or section 360 of Companies Act. 1956 during the vear ended March 31, 2022

Note - 56
There are no chiarges or satisfacuoe of charges vet 1o be registered with Registrar of Companies by the Company dunrig the year,

Note -§7

Thi Company d:d pot enter o am wansacuons wiuch are net recorded in the books of accounts and has been surrendered or disclosed as meeme dunny the s ear i the L assessments under the Income Tax Aet.
1961

Note -58
“The Company has not raded or invesied 1n crypio currency ar virtual currency during the finangial year endad March 31, 2022




Indinbulls Investment Advisors Limited
Summary of significant accovnting policles and other explanatory infermation for the year endled 31 March 2022
(AN amennis in Bx Lakhv unless stated othenvese)

Note - 59

In respect of amounts as mentioned under Secton 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 there were no dues required 10 be credited 1o the Investor Educanion and Protection Fund as on 31 March 2022

{Previous year  Rs Nil)
As per aur report of even date
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